
 

 

 

 
                                                                           MINUTES 
 
                                                 HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 
 
                                                                    April 28, 2011 
 
         A meeting of the Human Services Commission was held on Thursday, April 28, 2011, at 
4:30 p.m. in the First Floor Conference Room in the Sullivan Independence Hall in Fairfield. 
 
PRESENT: Commissioners:  Doug DeFauw, Chairman; Terry Medlin, Secretary; Selma 
                                                  Cohen, Nancy Legare, Elizabeth O’Connell, Phil Stein, Joan   
                                                  Swanson and William Varga 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Claire Grace, Director of the Fairfield Senior Center and 
                                                        Human & Social Services              
 
 MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: 
 
                                  Sara Levy  
                      Palma Senator 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Doug DeFauw at 4:30 p.m. 
 
 Mr. DeFauw introduced Selma Cohen, the newly appointed Commissioner of the 
Human Services Commission. Commissioner Cohen was welcomed by the Commissioners.  
 
1.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

The minutes of the March 24, 2011, meeting were reviewed and approved with the 
following changes: 

Page 4, Members of the Public – Change first paragraph to read: 

“Jennifer Hochberg, former Vice Chairperson and liaison to the RTM, advised that the 
Board of Finance will be voting on the budget March 31, 2011.  After the Board of Finance votes 
on the Budget, it will go to the RTM for a vote on May 2, 2011.” 

1 



 

 

Commissioner Joan Swanson moved for approval of the minutes of the March 24, 2011, 
meeting with the above changes.  William Varga seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

2.  GUEST SPEAKER:   There were no Guest Speakers scheduled for this meeting. 

3.  FAIRFIELD SENIOR SERVICES:  Claire Grace, Director 
                                                                    Fairfield Senior Services 
 

 Ms. Grace reported that the Senior Fair was held yesterday with the cooperation of the 
Fairfield Police Department.  Ms. Grace said the Fair, which began at 9:30 a.m., was well 
attended, noting that Commissioner DeFauw had also attended the Fair.  

 Ms. Grace said the Program Director will be coordinating several day events for the 
Senior Center.  Ms. Grace advised that on May 11th the Center will have Judy Chessin, a 
gerontological nurse practitioner, speak on the subject of diagnosing and treating depression in 
older adults.  Ms. Grace also said the fifth graders at Dwight School will be interviewing seniors 
at the Center on May 19th   starting at 10:15 a.m. The students are studying a transformative 
period in history as an exercise in oral history and want to learn about it from those who lived 
through the past century. The students will have a special ‘thank you’ breakfast for the seniors at 
the Dwight School on June 2nd. 
 
 Ms. Grace further reported that the Center will present a one-hour program on emergency 
preparedness for seniors on May 27th at 10:00 a.m. 
 

Ms. Grace presented a copy of The Fairfield Senior Times for May 2011 to the 
Commission, noting the increased distribution to 3,500 copies.  The Fairfield Senior Center 
Associates met today and its members are charged with getting new sponsors for the Center’s 
newsletter.  

4.  BOARD OF HEALTH LIAISON:  Commissioner Doug DeFauw 

There was nothing new to report at this time. 

5.  FAIRFIELD SENIOR CENTER ASSOCIATES:  Commissioner Louis Fernous, Jr.   

 There is no report as Commissioner Fernous is away. 

6.  OLD BUSINESS: 

Ms. Claire Grace reported that the Town’s out-reach program “Are You OK?” is now up 
and running thanks to new program soft-ware. The new program now allows participants to use 
their answering machines. Ms. Grace said there will be information for the seniors on how to 
sign up in next month’s newsletter.  Commissioner DeFauw said he was pleased to have the new 
program working. 

2 



 

 

Mr. DeFauw said he was advised that the new toilets seats should be in by next Friday.  
 
Mr. DeFauw said the Senior GO TO Directory for 2010 showed a “… percentage of 60 

years or older as 23.6%” for Fairfield, whereas the 2011 directory showed a “…percentage of 60 
years or older at 18.1%” for Fairfield.  Mr. DeFauw said he sent an e-mail to Peter J. O’Connell, 
Editor & Research Associate for the Senior GO TO Directory, for an explanation for the 5.5% 
discrepancy.  Mr. O’Connell replied:    

 
 “I do not really know why there was a decline in Fairfield’s senior population.  

Stratford also underwent a similar change.  Some towns saw substantial increases, others only 
slight increase.  Perhaps there was something about the nature of Fairfield’s housing situation 
(costs, etc.) over the last ten years that made the community less appealing, or accessible, to 
seniors.” 

 
Mr. DeFauw discussed with the Commissioners whether the Senior Center should have 

voice mail – this matter will be voted on at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. DeFauw also asked the Commissioners to think about possible entries for the 

directory of services – what other unique programs that might be suitable (such as the   
“Homebound Library Service”). 

 
7.  NEW BUSINESS:  

 Commissioner DeFauw advised that he spoke with Jennifer Carpenter in the First 
Selectman’s office about summer interns for the Director of Human Services and the Senior 
Center. 

Mr. DeFauw said that he e-mailed RTM members as a member of the public (not as 
HSC) and received 20% response even during this busy time.  Mr. DeFauw suggested the 
Commissioners should use letter writing as a tool to make the public aware of senior issues.  He 
said the Commissioners are welcome to draft letters and present then to the Commission for 
approval.  

Mr. DeFauw suggested the Commission schedule a meeting with the new First Selectman 
for some time in the near future, possibly in August.  Mr. DeFauw asked the Commissioners to 
think about matters to discuss with the First Selectman.  These matters will be discussed at the 
next meeting. 

Commissioner DeFauw asked for nominations for Vice Chairman. After some discussion, 
the Commission voted as follows: 

MOTION: Commissioner Phil Stein nominated Commissioner Selman Cohen for Vice 
Chairman.  Commissioner Elizabeth O’Connell seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

3 



 

 

 Commissioner Bill Varga suggested the Commission draft a letter of ‘thanks’ to former 
Commissioner Al Vosburg.  

 Mr. DeFauw will ask Tom Brown, Tax Assessor for the Town of Fairfield, to discuss the 
“Senior & Disabled Tax Relief Program” at the next meeting. 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:  

Ms. Palma Senator said she agreed the Senior Center should have voice mail.  She also 
discussed the decline in the town’s population and the need for better communication with the 
senior residents. 

8.  ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phil Stein moved to adjourn 
the meeting.  Commissioner Nancy Legare seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 5:50 p.m. 

 

                                                                                          Respectfully submitted,  

 
      CONSTANCE M. WADI 
      Recording Secretary                                                        

4 


